
 
IMLAY CITY 

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
150 N. MAIN STREET 

IMLAY CITY, MI 48444 
                  

REGULAR MEETING MAY 12, 2025 
5:35 P.M. 

 
Walter Bargen, Chair Justin Shattuck, Board Member  
Neil Docherty, Vice Chair  Steve Robbins, Board Member 
Kim Jorgensen, Secretary Joi Kempf, Board Member 
Stu Davis, Treasurer Barbara Yockey, Mayor   
   
  

A G E N D A 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

3. ROLL CALL 

4. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  

5. CONSENT AGENDA (pgs 3-15) 

MEETING MINUTES: Regular Meeting April 14, 2025; Special Meeting April 23, 2025 

    FINANCIAL REPORTS: through April 30, 2025 

                                      DDA Expenditure Report, Check Register Report; Credit Card Statement; Balance Sheet; 

6. CORRESPONDENCE – Chamber of Commerce Signed Letter – Rob Mette (pgs 17-20) 

7. COMMITTEE REPORTS – Business Retention/Recruitment Subcommittee 

8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:   

A. Farmers Market Ad Campaign (pgs 21-23) 

B. 150 Bancroft Building Real Estate Listing (pgs 25-27) 

10. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Façade Grant Application (signage) – 591 Cedar Street / Imlay City Pharmacy (pgs 29-40) 

B. Façade Grant Application - 170 S. Almont Ave / Imlay City Eagles (pgs 41-53) 

C. Façade Grant Application - 118 E. Third Street – Former Kitty’s Place (pgs 55-60) 

D. Pavilion Project Update (pgs 61-62) 

E. Seasonal Porta-Potties (pgs 63-68) 

F. Downtown Depot Pavilion Fee Schedule (pgs 69-72) 

G. Lapeer County Senior Services MOU (pgs 73-77) 

H. Lapeer County Special Voted Millages – requested by Mayor Barbara Yockey (pgs 79-84) 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION – For the purpose of employee annual review 

12. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT (85-88) 

13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 

                  Respectfully Submitted by: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director                                                                      Posted May 5, 2025 

                  Next Regular DDA Meeting – June 9, 2025 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

2



   

 

 

Consent Agenda 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Items Attached:  
a. Meeting Agenda 
b. Meeting Minutes  

• April 14th Regular Meeting; April 23rd Special Meeting 
c. Financial Reports – Ending April 30, 2025 

• DDA Expenditure Report = $ 23,288.49 
• Check Register Report = $ 16,696.94 
• Credit Statement – April 2025 
• Ending Fund Balance Sheet = $ 346,831.47 

  
 
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation:   Motion to approve the consent agenda items as presented. 

 

 

3



IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
April 14, 2025 Regular Meeting 

MINUTES 
 

A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, April 14, 2025, at the 
Imlay City Municipal Offices, 150 N. Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444. 
 
MOTION by Davis, supported by Jorgensen, to allow Justin Shattuck to preside as Board Chair for the 
meeting proceedings. 

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Jorgensen, Robbins, Yockey, Shattuck 
                    NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER – Meeting Chair Shattuck called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll. 

 Present: Stu Davis, Kim Jorgensen, Steve Robbins, Mayor Barbara Yockey, Justin Shattuck  
 Absent: Chairman Walter Bargen (excused), Neil Docherty (excused), Joi Kempf (excused) 

  
          Quorum Present 
 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve the consent agenda items as amended.  
 Consent agenda items include: 

a. Meeting Agenda 
b. Meeting Minutes  

• March 10th Regular Meeting 
c. Financial Reports – Ending March 30, 2025 

• DDA Expenditure Report = $ 18,954.15 
• Check Register Report = $ 3,421.65 
• Credit Statement – February 2025 
• Ending Fund Balance Sheet = $ 368,883.89 

  
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to the consent agenda items as presented. 

All in Favor 5 / Nays 0   
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

 
5. CORRESPONDENCE – none 

 
6. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – none 

 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS - none 

 
8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

 
John Genord thanked the Board for its efforts to revitalize downtown and asked the Board to support 
the BombBurger Blueberry Festival funding request, stating that it will help his business and all 
downtown businesses to have this well-organized event held along Third Street. 

4



 
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS – none 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Funding Request – Blueberry Festival  
The Board reviewed a funding request from Gjon Marku for in-kind advertising on the DDA 
billboard and $425 to cover the cost of porta-potties for a  June 21, 2025 event that he, his 
staff, and community volunteers are planning.  Marku was present and provided an update on 
activities being planned and to answer questions.  Davis expressed concern over Third Street 
closure and requested that it only be closed to traffic in areas where vendors will be set up.  
Mayor Yockey expressed concerns that the event was not being presented in conjunction with 
a non-profit group.  Director Malzahn stated that there are no prohibitions in the DDA ByLaws 
or TIF act that stipulates that funding events must include a non-profit entity.  She also noted 
that Third and Main was a stakeholder in the district as a tax paying entity. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to approve the Blueberry Festival funding request for in-
kind billboard sponsorship and $425 for porta-johns. 
Roll Call:  AYES –Davis, Robbins, Shattuck,  

  NAYS – Yockey, Jorgensen 
MOTION CARRIED 3/2 

B. Funding Request – SummerFest  
With no submission of funding request forms, the Board moved to postpone action on this 
item. 

NO BOARD ACTION TAKEN 

C. Flag Purchases  
The Board reviewed estimates provided in the packet to purchase 100 - 12”x18” US flags used 
for Memorial Day cemetery veteran's grave markings.  Director Malzahn noted that the DDA 
has funded this purchase in the past. Also included in the purchase request was a 
replacement flag for the boulevard entrance at Third and Cedar due to wear and tear on the 
existing flag. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve the US flag purchases in an amount not to 
exceed $542.99 as long and the flags are made in the USA. 
             Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Yockey, Robbins, Jorgensen, Shattuck 

  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

D.   DDA Market Manager / Promotions Assistant Employment Recommendation  
Chris Bishop spoke and thanked the Board for the opportunity to work as the Market Manager / 
DDA Promotions Asst, noting that she has enjoyed serving the local businesses and working 
with the Board.  Director Malzahn introduced and recommended Mindi Steffens to fill the 
position vacated by Bishop, starting April 22, 2025.  Steffens was present and spoke about her 
experience in Imlay City and answered Board questions. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to accept Market Manager Chris Bishop letter of 
resignation with regret. 

          All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

  
  MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to accept the recommendation of Director Malzahn to hire 

Mindi Steffens as the new Market Manager/DDA promotions asst at $16.50 hr up to 20 hours 
per week. 

5



Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Yockey, Shattuck 
  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

E.  Farmers Market Advertising Campaign  
Market Manager Bishop and Director Malzahn presented a marketing campaign opportunity to 
coincide with the start of the 2025 market season.  The concept was to advertise in both the 
Tri-City Times and the Lapeer View with a $5 BYGO coupon promotion.  Jorgensen questioned 
the rates presented in the packet, stating that they were too high, since the DDA is given a 
discounted rate.  Bishop noted that those were the rates provided to her when she called the 
paper to inquire. Mayor Yockey shared her concerns over a conflict that Board member 
Jorgensen had due to her ownership of the Tri-City Times paper.  It was noted that if Jorgensen 
recused herself from the meeting that a quorum would no longer be present to act on the item. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to postpone the agenda item until the May meeting so that 
Director Malzahn can gather more information and a quorum would be available. 

          All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  
 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

F. New Business Application and Zoning Compliance Certification 
Director Malzahn recapped her efforts to move the business license application process 
forward on behalf of the City.  She informed the Board that she would present the revised 
version in the Board packet to City Commission at their next meeting.  She asked for input 
from the Board and a motion of recommendation for support for Commission adoption. 

MOTION by Robbins, supported by Jorgensen to recommend to City Commission the adoption of 
the documents as presented. 

All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  
 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 
 

G. Conductors Corner Pavilion RFP Results  
Director Malzahn presented the bid results from the RFP that was advertised in the Tri-City Times 
and posted on BidNet in March.  The DDA received a total of 10 submissions ranging from $60,880 
to $220,000.  Malzahn recommended that the lowest bid be accepted from Tanis Construction, 
noting that his company has built similar structures in Imlay City, and the workmanship was 
excellent.  The project will be funded in part with a $!5,000 grant from the Lapeer County 
Community Foundation, if awarded, and the rest from DDA fund balance. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to accept the bid of $60,400 from Tanis Construction for the 
construction of a 40’x60’ structure on the former Farmers Market corner and to proceed with grant 
submission to the Lapeer County Community Foundation. 

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Yockey, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Bargen 
  NAYS – none 

MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

H. DPW Renovation Project Update  
Mayor Yockey updated the board on the decision from the City’s joint DDA/City Commission 
committee, which met to review RFP submissions the City received for the former DPW 
Garage renovation project.  She noted that the committee is recommending to City 
Commission to award the bid to Tanis Construction at the commission's next meeting. 
Director Malzahn requested the DDA Board vote to accept the committee's recommendation 
as well, since the DDA is allocating $50,000 towards the cost of renovations. 

MOTION to accept the City/DDA joint subcommittee’s recommendation of bid award to Tanis 
Construction. 

All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  

6



 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

I.  Social District Sign Installation Charges 

This agenda item was added at the request of Director Malzahn to discuss DPW charges for 
the installation of the social district signage.  DPW Supervisor Priehs, reviewed the district 
map, calculated materials, and labor hours needed for DPW to assist the DDA with sign 
installations. He notified Director Malzahn that the DDA should anticipate charges of 
$5,616.98 for the completion of the work. 

  MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve the DPW charges for sign installation. 
Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Yockey, Shattuck 

          NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 
 

11. CLOSED SESSION – For the purpose of employee annual review (at employee's request) 
MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to enter in to closed session @ 6:38 pm 

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Yockey, Shattuck 
NAYS – none 
 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to exit closed session @ 6:41 pm 
All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  

 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 
 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Jorgensen to table the Directors review until May 12th meeting. 
All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  

 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 
 

12. EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS' REPORT 
Director Malzahn provided her written report in the meeting packet for March/April 2025 activities.  
One additional item mentioned was the receipt of monies from Lapeer County for special voted 
millages in the amounts of:  Seniors: $5,063.54; Public Safety $2,251.31; Veterans - $290.59 

13.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  

Chris Bishop – 704 N. Van Dyke, Imlay City.  Bishop thanked the Board for the opportunity to 
serve as Market Manager and DDA Promotions.  She complimented Director Malzahn on her 
supervisory skills, stating how much she has enjoyed working here and the knowledge she has 
gained. 

14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none 

15. ADJOURNMENT 
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to adjourn the meeting at 6:55 pm 

All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  
 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 
 
 
Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, May 12, 2025, at 5:35 PM 
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 
 

DDA APPROVED:  
 

7



IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
April 23, 2025 Special Meeting Minutes 

 
A special meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Wednesday, April 23, 2025, at the 
Imlay City Municipal Offices, 150 N. Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Chairman Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll. 
 Present: Stu Davis, Kim Jorgensen, Justin Shattuck, Mayor Barbara Yockey, Chairman Walter Bargen,  
 Absent: Neil Docherty (excused, Joi Kempf (excused), Steve Robbins (excused) 
           Market Manager Bishop was also present   
          Quorum Present 
 

4. AGENDA APPROVAL 
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to approve the agenda items as presented.   

All in Favor 5 / Nays 0   
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

 
5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none 

 
6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. Conductors Corner Pavilion 
The Board reviewed the revised project timeframe and heard from contractor Bob Tanis regarding 
material availability and the location of proposed structure after existing infrastructure was 
located by MsDig.  Director Malzahn recapped with project status, noting that the monument sign 
must be removed due to clearance of the pavilion structure and additional costs for concrete to 
connect the structure to the surrounding sidewalks. 

MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Yockey to direct Contractor Tanis to order the truss materials for the 
project to align with the project timeline. 
Roll Call:  AYES –Jorgensen, Yockey, Davis, Shattuck, Bargen 

  NAYS – none 
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 
 
MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to allow staff to determine Farm Market opening day based on 

pavilion construction in the market area status. 
All in Favor 5 / Nays 0   
MOTION CARRIED 5/0 

7.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none 

8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Yockey to adjourn the meeting at 6:05 pm 

All in Favor 5 Ayes/Nays 0  
 MOTION CARRIED 5/0 
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

DDA APPROVED:                                                                                                              CITY COMMISSION APPROVED: 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

16



   

 

 

Correspondence 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Items Attached: Email Correspondence 
 Chamber Signed Letter 
  
 
Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

 

 

 

17



18



19



20



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM UB 9A. Farm Market Ad Campaign 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Background:  Former Market Manager Bishop researched options for advertising the opening 
market day in two common Lapeer County papers.  The campaign would offer a 
BOGO on any $5 purchase coupon to be used either on June 5th or June 12th 
only.  Any coupons returned would assist us in market research to know where 
our target audience is. 

 
 Proposal includes 2 issues with a ¼ page ad (4.638” x 4.75”) in the View (30,000 

homes) @$911.20 total and 2 issues with a ¼ page ad in the Tri-City Times 
(15,000 weekly readers) @ $450 
 

 
Items Attached:  Lapeer Area View Rates 

Tri-City Times Rates 
 

 
Action Needed:  Motion to approve ads to run in the Lapeer Area View Friday “Free Paper 

edition on May 30th, and June 6ty, and to run in the June 4th and June 11th 
edition of the Tri-City Times. 

  

21



 

 

 

Imlay City DDA 
Christiana Bishop 
150 N. Main St. 
Imlay City, MI 48444 
810-724-2135 

March 24, 2025 
 
 
 
RE: Rate options for Imlay City DDA 
 
Proposed Publication: 
Lapeer Area View 

• Direct mailed to approx. 30,000 households on Friday 
 
Display Advertising 

• Quarter pg. (4.638” x 4.75”)- $536 per run 

• Eighth pg. (4.638” x 2.3”)- $294 per run 
 
Discounted rates 

• Run bi-monthly- 15% discount 

• Run weekly- 20% discount 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
Michele Guerra 
Senior Account Executive 
810-338-1667 
 

22



From: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
To: Christine Malzahn
Subject: Tri-City Times
Date: Wednesday, April 23, 2025 2:54:48 PM

I reached out to Kim on April 22, 2025 to request an email quote for the special coupon
ad that we want to run for the start of Market season, per my conversation with Kim, she
informed me that the Tri-City Times no longer runs coupon ads anymore in their paper. I
told her I would let you (Christine) know, she told me if you have any questions to let her
know. The quoted price to run a ¼ page ad would be $225 includes color. 

Kind Regards,

Christiana Bishop

DDA Promotions Assistant/Farmer's Market Manager
810-724-2135 ext.1312

23

mailto:ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
mailto:ddadirector@imlaycity.org


THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

24



                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

 

 

AGENDA ITEM UB 9b. 150 Bancroft Real Estate Listing 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background:  The real estate listing agreement with Brandon Rowley has expired and the 
property is no longer active on the market.  Director Malzahn met with Tom 
Blount of Pilot Realty Group to discuss the sale of the building and utilizing his 
assistance to acquire other properties in downtown Imlay City as part of our 
plan to help revitalize some of the vacant buildings.  
 

 
Items Attached:  Proposed Listing Agreement 

 
 
Action Needed:  Motion to approve enter into the listing agreement with Pilot Realty Group. 

25



26



27



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

28



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10a:  Facade Grant Request 
591 Cedar Street / Imlay Pharmacy 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA office received a grant request from Amged Bedair on April 10, 
2025.  The scope of work includes new channel letter signage to be installed 
on the building façade, and a sign panel to be installed in the existing 
monument sign. 

 

Items Attached: Façade Grant Application 
 
  
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to approve the façade grant sign request in the amount of $1,500  for 591 
Cedar Street. 

 

 

 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10b. 170 S. Almont Ave – Imlay City Eagles 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA office received a grant request from Lynn Manogue on behalf of the 
Imlay City Eagles on April 24, 2025.  The Eagles are seeking $5,000 for 
exterior renovations to the front entrance area in conjunction to the on-
going metal siding installation. 

 

Items Attached: Façade Grant Application 
 
  
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to approve a façade grant in the amount of $5,000 for the Eagles, located 
at 170 S. Almont Avenue. 

 

 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

54



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10c. Façade Grant Request 
118 E. Third Street – Former Kitty’s Place 

______________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The DDA office received a grant request from Victor Aguilar on May 5, 2025.  
Mr. Aguilar and his wife recently purchased the property and are renovating 
it to make it marketable for a new business tenant.  They are requesting 
$434.21 to replace the broken window on the front of the building. 

 

Items Attached: Façade Grant Application 
 
  
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to approve a façade grant in the amount of $434.21 to Victor Aguilar, 
owner of 118 E. Third Street property. 

 

 

55



56



57



58



59



60



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10d. Pavilion Project Update 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: Due to existing infrastructure constraints at the project site, the location and 
orientation of the pavilion structure have been revised. The structure will now be 
oriented in a north/south configuration on the property. An updated site drawing 
reflecting this new orientation has been provided for your reference. 

To improve accessibility and connectivity, additional cement work is planned. 
Specifically, a new section will be added to the east side of the pavilion, connecting 
it to the existing curb along the municipal parking area. This includes a 12-foot 
sloped section that will provide ADA-compliant access from the pavilion to the 
adjacent asphalt surface. 

Further, the updated site drawing includes sidewalk enhancements, with a new 5-
foot walkway connecting the pavilion to the municipal sidewalk along N. Main 
Street, as well as a connection to the existing cement triangle where the monument 
sign is currently located. 

The monument sign is scheduled for removal by Valley Signs on May 9th and will be 
stored at the Department of Public Works until a new placement location is 
identified. 

I received verbal verification from Nancy Boxey that the grant review committee has 
recommended that our submission be fully funded at the $15,000 grant request.  
The full LCCF Board meets on May 14th to take a formal vote. 

The pavilion is expected to be fully operational for the Farmers Market opening day, 
now scheduled for June 5th. 

 

Items Attached: Site Plan 
 
  
Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

61



62



AGENDA ITEM NB 10e. Seasonal Restroom Facilities 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Background: Activity is anticipated to increase at the new pavilion location with the 
market season, social district and events currently being planned in the 
vicinity.  DDA staff has researched costs for two seasonal ADA portable 
facilities to be located on or near the farmers market corner. 

Pricing is for two-units billed in 28-day cycles, with weekly cleaning, including 
toilet paper and hand sanitizer refills.  Additional cleanings are available as 
needed at $40 per unit per visit. 

Items Attached: Rapid Deployment Estimate 
Jay’s Portables 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

Recommendation: Motion to approve contracting with Jay’s portable for one season, at $390 per 
28-day cycle, beginning May 19th through October 31 for two ADA-compliant
units.

63



From: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org
To: Christine Malzahn
Subject: Fw: Jays ADA unit bid
Date: Friday, April 25, 2025 10:49:39 AM
Attachments: image001.png

Kind Regards,

Christiana Bishop

DDA Promotions Assistant/Farmer's Market Manager
810-724-2135 ext.1312

From: Jon Hoberg <jon@jaysseptic.com>
Sent: Friday, April 25, 2025 7:43 AM
To: ddapromotions@imlaycity.org <ddapromotions@imlaycity.org>
Subject: Jays ADA unit bid

Chris,

Thank you for giving me the opportunity to do business with you.

We can provide the 2 HCP ADA units for $195.00 per unit and those come with once-a-week
cleaning.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Jon D Hoberg
Operations Manager
Jays Septic, Lapeer MI
810-664-8080

64



65



Thank you so much for your time and inquiring about our portable restroom rates for the 
Farmers Market coming up in Imlay City! 

Here are the rates we discussed and everything that is included with that pricing: 

 

$150.00 - Standard Unit 

$250.00 - Handicap Unit 

$45.00 - Additional Cleaning 

 

This pricing includes:  

Weekly cleanout and full re-stock (re-stock includes: hand sanitizer and toilet paper) 

Delivery and pick-up. 

We bill every 28 days - first payment is due upon drop of the unit for the first 28 days. 

Additional Cleaning is an added on service that if needed more than the additional weekly 
cleaning that is already included in that 28 day pricing - just needs to be scheduled a few 
days in advance so it can be added to our route. 

We accept all forms of payment - there is a 3% charge if using credit card. 

I included pictures of the different units as well! 

Thank you again Christine for your time, we look forward to the opportunity of working with 
you and the Imlay City DDA. 

 

Best, 

Chelsea Mishakis 

Rapid Deployment Portable Restrooms 

(586) 588-2403  

www.RDPRR.com 

https://www.facebook.com/rdprr 

 

 

66

http://www.rdprr.com/
https://www.facebook.com/rdprr


67



68



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10f. Downtown Depot Pavilion Fee Schedule 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: The Imlay City Commission has adopted a fee schedule for rentals of park 
assets, including the Gazebo in Lamb Steele Park.  With the construction of 
the new Downtown Depot Pavilion Director Malzahn would like the Board to 
consider a similar practice and is seeking direction on future requests to use 
the pavilion for community and/or private events, since this structure is a 
DDA asset. 

 

Items Attached: City Rental Reservation Form 
 
  
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 

Recommendation: Motion to adopt a fee schedule for the Downtown Depot Pavilion. 
 

 

69



Park Reservation Request 
City of Imlay City  (810) 724-2135 

 150 N Main Street, Imlay City, MI 48444  

ENJOY IMLAY CITY’S PARKS! 

 

 
Area Reserved: (Circle your choice)       Residential    Non-Residential 
 
  Butterfly Garden and Pergola  $ 40.00 per 2 Hrs.  $ 80.00 per 2 Hrs. 
  Lamb/Steele Park Gazebo   $ 50.00 per Day  $ 100.00 per Day 
  Lions Park Pavilion     $ 50.00 per Day  $ 100.00 per Day 
  Old School Park      $ 50.00 per Day  $ 100.00 per Day 
  Rotary Park Gazebo    $ 50.00 per Day  $ 100.00 per Day 
  Veterans Park        Not Currently Rentable 

 

BALANCE PAID IN FULL AT TIME OF APPLICATION 

Reservation Date: __________________________________________________________________________________ 

Time of Event: Start____________________________________   End_______________________________________ 

Name of Group: _______________________________________   Non-Profit:     Yes (     )          No (     ) 

Type of Activity: _______________________________________ 

Contact Person: ________________________________________   Phone: ___________________________________ 

Email: _____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
      Street 

  ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
     City, State, Zip Code 
 
Waiver of Liability: In consideration of the City of Imlay City allowing us to reserve and use the park property 
Indicated above, we agree to assume any and all liability and to hold the City of Imlay City harmless against 
any liability which may arise due to the use of the above property, except for those claims arising out of the 
sole negligence of the City of Imlay City, its agents, and/or employees.  

We further acknowledge that the City of Imlay City assumes no responsibility for any damages or injuries 
which may occur during the use of the property indicated except for those claims arising out of the sole 
negligence of the City of Imlay City, its agents, and/or employees.  

We further agree to abide by all ordinances, laws, and regulations of the City of Imlay City and the State of Michigan. 

Signature: _____________________________________________   Date _____________________________________ 

 

____________________       Office Use Only – Do not write below this line__________________________ 

Fees Received: $ __________________ Date: ___________________   Staff Initials: _________________ 

Cancellation Contact Person: _______________________________   Date: ________________________ 

Refund Authorization: (    ) No Refund (    ) Refund Amount _________________ Staff Initials_______________ 

70



Park Reservation Request 
City of Imlay City  (810) 724-2135 

 150 N Main Street, Imlay City, MI 48444  

ENJOY IMLAY CITY’S PARKS! 

 

 

 

Conditions of Use 

 

Rental Fees: Rental fee is required to be paid at the time of the reservation request, accompanied with the 
completed rental form. **Alcohol Park Permit must be applied for at the time of rental and given at least 
two weeks (2) to process before the event. ** 

 

Cancellation Policy: Reservations cancelled at least thirty (30) days prior to your reservation date, your 
payment will be refunded. Cancellations with less than thirty (30) day notice, WILL NOT be refunded. 

 

Reservations: Reservations made are only for the date and time indicated on the form.         
City Hall office hours are Monday, Tuesday, Thursday, and Friday from 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.        
Wednesday from 1:00 p.m. – 4:30 p.m. 

 

 

Rules and Regulations:  

* Alcoholic beverages are ONLY permitted with a valid ALCOHOL PARK PERMIT on file.  

* No stapling, nailing, tacking, or taping signs/banners, and decorations on any part of the pavilion.             
If damage occurs during your reservation, you will be invoiced for repairs.  

* You are responsible for general cleaning of the gazebo, pavilion, or pergola after your function.           
Please remove any signs, posters, and decorations. Trash barrels are provided throughout the park area.   

* All Park hours are 7:00 A.M. to 10:00 P.M.  

* If you plan to have staked popup tents at any park during your rental, you must have approval from the 
DPW Superintendent. 

* Please see helpful information about our facilities. 

 

 

HELPFUL INFORMATION 

WEATHER PERMITTING PICNIC TABLES ARE PUT OUT IN APRIL 

71



Park Reservation Request 
City of Imlay City  (810) 724-2135 

 150 N Main Street, Imlay City, MI 48444  

ENJOY IMLAY CITY’S PARKS! 

 

  Butterfly Garden and Pergola 
 Electricity - No  
 Tables - One Large Picnic Table 
 Grills – No 
 Restroom facilities - None 
 
  Lamb/Steele Park and Gazebo 
 Electricity - Two outlets on the gazebo itself; Also, two panels near the east and west of the gazebo area that   
         contain many outlets.  
 Tables - Four Picnic Tables 
 Grills – One 
 Restroom facilities - None 
 
  Lions Park and Pavilion 
 Electricity - No 
 Tables - Eight Picnic Tables 
 Grills – One 
 Restroom facilities - Weather Permitting, Typically May thru October.   
 
  Old School Park and Pavilion 
 Electricity - No 
 Tables - Two Picnic Tables 
 Grills – One 
 Restroom facilities – Portable Restroom on Sight, Weather Permitting, May thru October. 
 
  Rotary Park and Gazebo 
 Electricity - No 
 Tables - Two Picnic Tables 
 Grills – No 
 Restroom facilities – Portable Restroom on Sight, Weather Permitting, May thru October. 
 
  Veterans Park  

 Electricity - No 
 Tables - Two Picnic Table 
 Grills – One 
 Restroom facilities - None 
 

Please retain this sheet for your reference. 

If you have any other questions regarding the facilities, 

please contact City Hall at (810) 724-2135. 
 

72



   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NB 10g. Lapeer County Senior Services MOU 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Background: A Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) has been drafted for each entity 
that is expected to receive the captured special-voted millage tax collection, 
including the Imlay City Senior Center, Imlay City Police Department, and the 
area Veterans groups.  In communication with Lapeer County Administrator 
Moses Sanzo, the version included in your packet has been sent back to 
Director Malzahn after review by the county’s legal counsel.  DDA Chair 
Bargen would like direction from the Board for next steps. 

 

Items Attached: Amended Senior Center MOU 
 
  
Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

 
Recommendation: Motion to authorize Board Chair Bargen to enter into the amended agreement as 

presented. 
 
 

 

 

73



From: Moses Sanzo
To: Christine Malzahn
Cc: wbargen@icdda.com; Doreen Clark
Subject: RE: Imlay City Senior Center MOU
Date: Wednesday, April 30, 2025 8:55:09 AM
Attachments: image002.png

MOU Senior Services Millage 2025.4.29 MS Edits.docx

Good morning, Christine
 
We have reviewed the MOU and have just a few edits we would like to apply. The primary purpose
of the edits is to make it clearer legally that the agreement is between Imlay City DDA and Lapeer
County for the benefit of the Imlay City Senior Center. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions after your review and we’ll move forward.
 
Thank you, Moses
 

From: Moses Sanzo 
Sent: Tuesday, April 29, 2025 11:25 AM
To: 'Christine Malzahn' <ddadirector@imlaycity.org>
Cc: wbargen@icdda.com
Subject: RE: Imlay City Senior Center MOU

 
To Christine Malzahn,
 
Thank you for forwarding. We appreciate that Imlay City DDA will be gifting back the millage funds.
 
The MOU is being reviewed, and I will get back to you shortly with any questions or edit requests.
 
Kind regards, Moses
 
 
 
 

Moses Sanzo
ADMINISTRATOR/CONTROLLER

Phone: (810)358-7935
Email: msanzo@lapeercounty.org
Website: lapeercountymi.gov
Address: Lapeer County, 255 Clay St., Lapeer

MI 48446

The content of this email is confidential and intended for the recipient specified in message only. It is
strictly forbidden to share any part of this message with any third party, without a written consent of the
sender. If you received this message by mistake, please reply to this message and follow with its deletion,

74



so that we can ensure such a mistake does not occur in the future.
 
 
 
 

From: Christine Malzahn <ddadirector@imlaycity.org> 
Sent: Monday, April 28, 2025 11:08 AM
To: Moses Sanzo <msanzo@lapeercounty.org>
Cc: wbargen@icdda.com
Subject: Imlay City Senior Center MOU

 
CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organization. Do not click links or open attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

 

Dear Mr. Sanzo,
 
On behalf of the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority (DDA) and the Imlay City Senior
Center, I am reaching out to request your assistance with executing a Memorandum of
Understanding (MOU) between our two organizations. The purpose of this MOU is to formalize
the 100% gifted return of the Lapeer County Special Voted Senior Millage funds to the Imlay
City Senior Center.
 
This agreement is intended to promote clear communication, transparency, and a shared
understanding between all parties, reinforcing our commitment to the appropriate use and
stewardship of these funds in support of senior services within our community.
 
Please let me know the next steps you recommend and whether, after your preliminary review,
you require any changes to the attached draft MOU. If the agreement is satisfactory as written,
kindly advise whether you would like me to present it formally to the Lapeer County Board of
Commissioners at their next public meeting, or if Chairman Howell would prefer to sign on
behalf of Imlay Senior Services administratively. I anticipate that DDA Board Chair Walt Bargen
will formally sign the MOU on behalf of the DDA at our May 12th meeting.
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter. We look forward to working with you to complete
this process.
 
Best regards,
 
Christine Malzahn   
DDA Executive Director
City of Imlay City
 
150 North Main Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307  |  Mobile: 586-801-0166

75



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 
THE IMLAY CITY DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY AND 
THE LAPEER COUNTY SENIOR SERVICES AGENCYCOUNTY OF LAPEER 

 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is made and entered into this   day of  , 2025, 
by and between the Imlay City Downtown Development Authority (hereinafter referred to as "DDA") and the 
Lapeer County Senior Services Agency (hereinafter referred to as "LCSSA"). County of Lapeer (hereinafter 
referred to as “County”). 

Purpose 

The Parties enter into this Agreement pursuant to the Intergovernmental Contracts Between Municipal 
Corporations Act, Public Act 35 of 1951, MCL 124.3. The purpose of this MOU is to establish the terms and 
conditions under which the DDA will capture the revenue generated by the .3916 mills Lapeer County Special 
Voted Senior Services millage within the DDA’s Tax Increment Financing (TIF) District beginning in 2025 and 
transfer these funds as a gift to be utilized for to the Imlay City Senior Center. The funds will be dedicated to 
enhancing senior services and programs that benefit residents within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District. 

Background 

The DDA recognizes the importance of supporting senior citizens as a vital part of the community. By gifting the 
captured millage funds to the Imlay City Senior Center, the DDA aims to ensure that senior residents within the 
TIF District have access to enhanced resources, services, and programs that contribute to their well-being and 
quality of life. 

Terms of Agreement 

1. Capture of Millage Revenue 

o The DDA will capture the .3916 mills Lapeer County Special Voted Senior Services millage 
(“Captured Millage Revenue”) within the boundaries of the Imlay City TIF District starting in the 
2025 fiscal year until the year 2026 when the millage expires. 

2. Transfer of Funds 

o The DDA agrees to gift 100% of the Ccaptured Mmillage Rrevenue annually to the County for use 
at the Imlay City  

o Senior Center for usewithin in the Imlay City TIF District. 

o The transfer of funds shall occur within 30 days of the DDA receiving the Ccaptured 
Mmillage Rrevenue. 

3. Use of Funds 

o The LCSSA County agrees to utilize the gifted funds exclusively for programs, services, or 
initiatives benefiting senior residents within the Imlay City TIF District. These may 
include, but are not limited to: 

 Senior wellness programs and activities. 

 Facility improvements or equipment purchases for the Imlay City Senior Center. 

76



 Transportation services or other supportive resources for seniors. 

o An annual report detailing the use of funds, including expenditures and outcomes 
achieved, shall be provided by the LCSSA Lapeer County Senior Services Agency division of the 
County to the DDA. 

4. Accountability and Reporting 

o Both parties commit to maintaining transparency and accountability regarding the use of funds. 

o The DDA reserves the right to request additional information or documentation related to the 
use of funds. 

5. Duration and Termination 

o This MOU shall remain in effect until May 1, 2026, unless amended or terminated by 
mutual agreement of both parties. 

6. Amendments 

o Any amendments to this MOU must be made in writing and signed by authorized 
representatives of both parties. 

Authorization 

This MOU is executed by the undersigned representatives of the DDA and the LCSSACounty, who hereby 
warrant that they have the authority to enter into this agreement. 

 
 
For the Imlay City DDA: For Imlay City Senior Services CenterLapeer 
County: 

 
 

 

Walter Bargen Gary Howell 
Chairperson Chairperson 
Imlay City Downtown Development Authority Lapeer County Board of Commissioners 

Date:   Date:   

 
This agreement reflects the shared commitment of the DDA and the LCSSA County  to supporting the senior 
population within the Imlay City TIF District, fostering a thriving and inclusive community for all residents. 

77



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THIS PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALY BLANK 

 

 

78



AGENDA ITEM NB 10h. Lapeer Special Voted Millages 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

Background: This agenda item has been requested by Mayor Barbara Yockey. 

Items Attached: April 2024 Meeting Minutes 
Memo from IC Police Chief Selby regarding use of funds 

Action Needed: Pass the motion(s) as recommended or amended per board discussion. 

79



APPROVED 5/13/2024 

IMLAY CITY 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

 
Regular Meeting  
April 8, 2024 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

A regular meeting of the Downtown Development Authority was held on Monday, April 8, 2024, at Imlay City 
Hall, 150 North Main Street, Imlay City MI 48444. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Walt Bargen called the meeting to order at 5:35 pm 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3. ROLL CALL – Director Malzahn called the roll: 
 Present: Justin Shattuck, Stu Davis, Kim Jorgensen, Neil Docherty, Walter Bargen, Mayor Joi Kempf 
           Absent: Steve Robbins (arrived 5:40) 
           Quorum Present 

 

4. CORRESPONDENCE - none 
 

5. SPECIAL PRESENTATION – Director Malzahn and Justin Shattuck presented the “I AM Imlay City” Consumers 
Energy grant pitch to the board in advance of the competition pitch being presented at the CEDM 
Conference on April 29th. 

 
6. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

City Services Negotiating Committee – Chair Bargen provided an update that no meetings have 
been scheduled as of yet due to the lack of availability of city administration. 
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA 
 MOTION by Davis, supported by Shattuck to approve the consent agenda items including: 
 Meeting Agenda; Regular Meeting Minutes March 11, 2024; Closed Session Minutes March 11, 2024; 

Financial Reports through March 30, 2024. 
 All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
8. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION – none 
 
9. OLD BUSINESS – none 

 
10. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Hispanic Services Funding Request 
The Board reviewed a funding request submitted by the Hispanic Services Center.  Center Director 
Lourdes Emke was present to answer Board questions.  The event will be held on May 4, 2024 in the 
same location as last year.  DDA funds will be used for event advertising. 

 MOTION by Davis, supported by Kempf to approve the funding request for advertising the Hispanic 
Services Center Cinco DeMayo 2024 event in an amount of $1,000.00 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Kempf, Robbins, Shattuck, Docherty, Jorgensen, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 

80



 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 
 
B.  Millage Capture Determination 

Director Malzahn requested clarification of Board action regarding all current and future Lapeer 
County Special Voted Millages. Previous board minutes documenting opt-out status, opt-out status 
with gift back notations, and current opt-out requests by Lapeer EMS and the Lapeer County 
Commissioners for their proposed 2024 Veterans Services millage have differing positions.  Director 
Malzahn recommended that the DDA Board consider options and best practices moving forward for 
all current and future ballot proposals and how those dollars directly impact the city of Imlay City 
and the DDA area taxpayers. Malzahn noted that the Lapeer Main Street now captures all special 
voted millages.  Board members asked for clarification on the monetary amount for each item and 
reviewed a spreadsheet with the calculations.  Davis expressed concerns about how DDA capture 
would be perceived.  Malzahn recommended that the DDA capture all monies and enter into 
revenue-sharing agreements with local agencies to gift back the funds in a show of support annually. 
 

 Lapeer County EMS 
 MOTION by Kempf, supported Docherty to confirm opt-out status through 2026 for Lapeer County EMS. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Kempf, Docherty, Davis, Robbins, Shattuck, Jorgensen, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 

 
 Lapeer County Senior Services 
 MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Robbins to capture Senior Services Millage and enter into a 
revenue sharing agreement to gift back tax capture to Imlay City Senior Center beginning winter tax bill 
2024. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Robbins, Davis, Shattuck, Docherty, Kempf, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 

 
 Lapeer County Public Safety 
 MOTION by Robbins, supported by Docherty to capture Lapeer County Public Safety millage and enter 
into a revenue sharing agreement to gift back tax capture to Imlay City Public Safety departments 
beginning winter tax bill 2024.  

Roll Call:  AYES – Robbins, Docherty, Davis, Shattuck, Jorgensen, Kempf, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 
 

 Lapeer County Veterans 
MOTION to amend the original motion by Davis to NOT CAPTURE funding from Veterans Services due 
to possible negative impact to DDA. 

Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Shattuck, Docherty, Jorgensen, Kempf, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 

AMENDED MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Kempf to hereby resolve that we intend to "capture" 
funds from the extra voted countywide millage that will be on the August 2024 primary election ballot; 
authorizing Christine Malzahn to sign the Acknowledgment/Letter of Capture Intent and return to the 
Lapeer County Board of Commissioners; and enter into a revenue sharing agreement to gift back tax 
capture to Imlay City VFW Post 2492 if voter-approved.  

 Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Kempf, Robbins, Shattuck, Docherty, Bargen 

81



                  NAYS – Davis 
 MOTION CARRIED 6/1 

 
 All future Lapeer County Special Voted Millages 
No Board action was taken on the request to confirm all future Lapeer County special-voted ballot 
initiatives. 

 
C. Summer Intern Position  

Director Malzahn presented a funding opportunity from the Four County Community Foundation’s 
Return to Earn paid summer intern program.  Ruby Hernandez, one of the Farm Market manager 
applicants, was not offered the position due to her school obligations, however, Malzahn is 
recommending that she be hired to assist with marketing, promotions, and website updates geared 
toward improving DDA communications with our Hispanic residents. 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to hire Ruby Hernandez as a summer intern at a rate of $10.00 per 
hour, 20 hours per week for 14 weeks, co-funded by the Four County Community Foundation at $2,000 for 
marketing, promotions, and communication assistance. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Robbins, Jorgensen, Shattuck, Docherty, Kempf, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 

 
D. Landscape Architect Request for Proposal Results  

The Board reviewed RFP submissions from 4 firms: Johnson Hill Land Ethics - $17,460; PEA 
Group - $86,000; Grissim Metz Associates - $31,400; Fishbeck - $121,500.  Jorgensen asked for 
the locations of the firms, noting she would prefer to use a firm that has previously worked 
with the city or located nearby.  Comparisons were discussed. Malzahn noted that the open 
master-plan survey currently being circulated, would hopefully provide input from responders 
for what residents would like to see in those locations.  She noted that it may be advantageous 
to pause the project and wait until the survey closes to move the project forward. 

MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Docherty to reject all Landscape Architect proposals submitted in 
response to the RFP. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Docherty, Davis, Robbins, Shattuck, Kempf, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 
 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Jorgensen to approve an amount not to exceed $17,000 for landscape 
concept plans from a firm TBD by Director Malzahn. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Davis, Jorgensen, Robbins, Shattuck, Docherty, Kempf, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 

  
E. Board Member Vice Chair Election 

Chair Bargen reported that he had previously spoken with Docherty about assuming the vice-chair 
position.  Docherty is willing to assume the duties since the seat was vacated by Villaneuva.  

MOTION by Jorgensen, supported by Robbins to nominate Neil Docherty to serve as DDA vice chair 
effective immediately. 

 Roll Call:  AYES – Jorgensen, Robbins, Davis, Kempf, Shattuck, Docherty, Bargen 
                  NAYS – none 
 MOTION CARRIED 7/0 

82



 
14. ADJOURNMENT 

MOTION by Davis, supported by Robbins to adjourn the meeting at 7:00 pm 
  All in Favor 7 / Nays 0 - MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  
 
Next Regular DDA Board meeting date: Monday, May 13, 2024, at 5:35 PM 
 
Respectfully submitted by: _________________________________________ 
                                     Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 
 
DDA APPROVED:  05/13/2024 
CITY COMMISSION APPROVED: 

83



 
Imlay City Police Department 

395 East Third St. 
Imlay City, MI  48444 

(810) 724-2345 
 
 

MEMO 
 
To: Christine Malzahn, Director, Imlay City Downtown Development Authority 

From: Chief of Police, Brett D. Selby 

Subject: Lapeer County Capture Funds 

 
The Imlay City Police Department, the residents and the DDA would benefit greatly from utilizing 
the  "captured funds" from Lapeer County and re-distributing them to public safety initiatives for 
several reasons. First, funding immediate mental health initiatives such as Crisis Intervention 
response training for our officers who have direct deployment. In addition to this, fostering a 
police chaplain program for community engagement and foot patrols in the downtown district 
which has been receiving a revitalization in recent months. 
 
In 2024, the police department responded to or self-initiated over 4,000 calls for service, 99% of 
those calls were handled by the Imlay City Police Department and not by the Lapeer Cunty 
Sheriffs Office or Michigan State Police. In the DDA district, 100% of the calls for police Service 
were handled by the Imlay City Police Department. 
 
Capture funds will be used to enhance public safety efforts, rather than simply replacing existing 
funding. This means the funds can be used to address public safety needs in innovative and 
creative ways that directly benefit the citizens, visitors and DDA area. Benefits such as 
strengthening existing programs or developing new ones. For example, Imlay City notes that the 
funds will allow local departments to upgrade equipment, enhance officer training, and expand 
community-focused policing.  
 
The DDA for Imlay City has recently absorbed the management plan opposite of the ordinance 
enforcement on the law enforcement side for the Imlay City Social District. Part of the Social 
District management plan would require extra foot and vehicular patrols in the DDA district to 
properly manage this new program. 
 
 
 
 
Brett D. Selby 
Chief of Police 
Imlay City Police Department 

84



   

 

 

Directors Report 
______________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

DATE: May 12, 2025 

TO:  DDA Board Members 

FROM: Christine Malzahn, DDA Executive Director 

 

Items Attached: April Report 
 Weekly email reports 
  
 
Action Needed: No Board Action Needed 

 

 

 

85



  Director’s Report – May 2025 
 

Promotions/Events 
• On-going Social media postings and engagement with downtown merchants on Facebook and Instagram. 
• Staff and I created ads, social media postings, message board sign ads 
• Updated website calendar of events and other happenings 
• Staff and I completed the I am Imlay City project, sent thank you notes and press release follow-ups. 
• Assisted HSC with Cinco DeMayo event arrangements. 

 

Economic Development 
• Social District signage was installed and labels were delivered to license holders 
• Met with Chamber of Commerce to discuss SummerFest event and assist with rules/MLC social district 

requirements. 
• Revised City Business Application forms 
• Drafted MOU’s for Lapeer County special-voted millages. 

 
 

Place Making/Streetscape 
• Began pavilion project work, met with contractor on-site to address problems as they arose 
• Staff and I finalized Hometown Hero banners and submitted them for production 
• Worked with Fidel on spring clean-up and plantings. 

 
Grants:  

• Submitted additional documentation requested for Rotary Park DNR Passport Rec Grant 
 

Billboard:  
• Submitted artwork for the Heritage Church campaign #3 

 
Imlay City Façade Corp 

• none 
 

Meetings and Other:   
• Attended Rotary Club weekly meetings. 
• Processed invoices, check requests, and mailed payments. 
• Made updates to the DDA website per Chamber request, and worked on website re-design with Civic Clarity 
• Attended April 15th City Commission Meeting for pavilion project site approval and business application 

package 
• Attended the monthly Hispanic Cultural/Services meeting 
• Attended monthly Lapeer DDA’s meeting 
• Prepared meeting minutes, agendas, action item sheets, and board packets for regular DDA meeting 

86



From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; sdavis@icdda.com; jshattuck@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com; "jkempf@icdda.com";

kjorgensen@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; "byockey@imlaycity.org"
Subject: Week ending April 18
Date: Thursday, April 17, 2025 3:24:00 PM
Attachments: Pavilion Structure Site Plan.png

image001.png

Hello All,
 
Just a few quick items to fill you in on.
 
I’m still working on typing the minutes from our Monday, so I’ll send those as soon as I’m finished. 
This is a short work week since City Hall is closed tomorrow for the Eater holiday.
 
City Commission at their Tuesday meeting adopted the Business Application packet.  City staff will
begin implementing that process for any new businesses that is looking to open up here in Imlay City.
 The Commission also awarded the RFP bid for the DPW Garage renovations to Tanis Construction
pending grant approval from the MEDC RAP 3.0 – no word on grants awards as of today..
 
Conductors Corner Pavilion updates:

1. The grant to LCCF was submitted on Tuesday.
2. Bob Tanis and I met on site and have staked out the location of the new pavilion. 
3. I made a drawing on a aerial google map showing the proposed location, and presented it to

the commissioners at their Tuesday meeting, formally asking if the DDA can have the structure
built on that city-owned parcel.  They voted unanimously in favor.  (See attached)

4. Ms Dig has been called and the site has been marked for utilities.
5. DPW Supervisor Priehs and I met to review the project, making sure he didn’t foresee any

problems. The water hand pump in the Northeast corner will need to be repaired before
construction begins.  DPW will take care of that.

6. The way the pavilion is situated on the site, Tanis, Priehs and I agreed that it was best to
remove an 8ft section of the curb that separates the parking lot area on the east side and have
the concrete from the pavilion floor slope down to meet the asphalt.  This will make access to
the structure ADA compliant.  The DPW is not able to do curb cuts like this, so I reached out to
Northern Concrete and got a price of $575 for the work. 

 
DDA website refresh work began this week.  I held an online meeting with Accunet and we went over
the website to delete outdated information and reorganize other content to make it easier to navigate
for site visitors.  I plan to present the website for input to the whole Board either in May or June.
 
The irrigation system was turned back on today. Repairs are needed from some winter damage near
the train tracks, but our contractor is taking care of that.  Our annual flower plantings are expected
just after Mother’s Day (weather dependent) but Fidel and I are working now on plant splitting as the
perennials emerge.

87



From: Christine Malzahn
To: wbargen@icdda.com; sdavis@icdda.com; srobbins@icdda.com; "jkempf@icdda.com"; "byockey@imlaycity.org";

jshattuck@icdda.com; kjorgensen@icdda.com; ndocherty@icdda.com
Cc: "ddapromotions@imlaycity.org"
Subject: Week Ending April 25th
Date: Friday, April 25, 2025 1:32:00 PM
Attachments: 2025.04.23 Special Meeting Minutes.docx

image001.png
2025.04.14 Regular Meeting Minutes.docx

Hello Board Members,

Attached are the draft meeting minutes from the 14th and the 23rd.  Please let me know if you see
anything that needs to be edited.

Just a quick update on the pavilion project.  Bob Tanis has ordered the trusses, Valley Sign is
scheduling the monument sign removal for next week, Northern Concrete will be removing the curb
section for the ADA walkway on May 5th and I will be meeting next week with Jem Electric to get a
second quote on the electrical work needed.  Mindi issued a Facebook survey to gather feedback on
the suggested names for the new pavilion structure.  Please take a moment to find it on our
Downtown Imlay City page and participate.

Fineline delivered the mulch for the downtown bed areas today.  His crew will be doing spring
cleanup and mulching the bed areas this weekend.  He and I toured the area on Wednesday and
discussed plans to split and move some overgrown items to the beds along Depot Drive as well as
his plans to donate about $10,000 worth of shrubs and perennials to improve the bump-out bed
areas on the corner of Third and Main. Spring has Sprung and I can't wait to see the colorful plants
brighten up downtown soon!

Christine Malzahn
DDA Executive Director
City of Imlay City

150 North Main Street, Imlay City, Michigan 48444
Office: 810-724-2135 ext. 1307 | Mobile: 586-801-0166
Email: ddadirector@imlaycity.org

88


	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting MAY 12, 2025
	ADPB096.tmp
	A. Conductors Corner Pavilion
	7.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none
	8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none
	9. ADJOURNMENT


	ADP8CBB.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting MAY 12, 2025

	ADPA5A2.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting MAY 12, 2025

	ADPA698.tmp
	Purpose
	Background
	Terms of Agreement
	2. Transfer of Funds
	3. Use of Funds
	4. Accountability and Reporting
	5. Duration and Termination
	6. Amendments
	Authorization
	For the Imlay City DDA: For Imlay City Senior Services CenterLapeer County:

	ADP94B2.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting MAY 12, 2025

	ADP8AEF.tmp
	A. Conductors Corner Pavilion
	7.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none
	8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none
	9. ADJOURNMENT


	ADPBA3F.tmp
	A. Funding Request – Blueberry Festival
	B. Funding Request – SummerFest
	C. Flag Purchases
	D. Credit Card Processing Equipment
	D.   DDA Market Manager / Promotions Assistant Employment Recommendation
	A. MOTION CARRIED 5/0Credit Card Processing Equipment
	A. MOTION CARRIED 5/0Credit Card Processing Equipment
	E.  Farmers Market Advertising Campaign
	A.  MOTION CARRIED 5/0Credit Card Processing Equipment
	F. New Business Application and Zoning Compliance Certification
	G. Conductors Corner Pavilion RFP Results
	Director Malzahn presented the bid results from the RFP that was advertised in the Tri-City Times and posted on BidNet in March.  The DDA received a total of 10 submissions ranging from $60,880 to $220,000.  Malzahn recommended that the lowest bid be ...
	A. MOTION CARRIED 5/0Credit Card Processing Equipment
	H. DPW Renovation Project Update
	I.  Social District Sign Installation Charges
	A. MOTION CARRIED 5/0Credit Card Processing Equipment
	13.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none
	15. ADJOURNMENT


	2025.04.14 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	A. Funding Request – Blueberry Festival
	B. Funding Request – SummerFest
	C. Flag Purchases
	D.   DDA Market Manager / Promotions Assistant Employment Recommendation
	E.  Farmers Market Advertising Campaign
	F. New Business Application and Zoning Compliance Certification
	G. Conductors Corner Pavilion RFP Results
	Director Malzahn presented the bid results from the RFP that was advertised in the Tri-City Times and posted on BidNet in March.  The DDA received a total of 10 submissions ranging from $60,880 to $220,000.  Malzahn recommended that the lowest bid be ...
	H. DPW Renovation Project Update
	I.  Social District Sign Installation Charges
	13.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
	Chris Bishop – 704 N. Van Dyke, Imlay City.  Bishop thanked the Board for the opportunity to serve as Market Manager and DDA Promotions.  She complimented Director Malzahn on her supervisory skills, stating how much she has enjoyed working here and th...
	14. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none
	15. ADJOURNMENT


	2025.04.23 Special Meeting Minutes.pdf
	A. Conductors Corner Pavilion
	7.  PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - none
	8. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS – none
	9. ADJOURNMENT


	ADP9FEE.tmp
	IMLAY CITY, MI 48444
	Regular Meeting MAY 12, 2025




